
Youngshin Motherson Auto Tech Limited
CIN : U35999DL2017PLC321298 -                          -                                       
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025 -                          -                                       

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3(a) 1,257                      1,286                                   
Capital work-in-progress 3(b) -                          28                                        
Right of use assets 3(c) 293                         409                                      
Intangible assets 4 15                            7                                          
Financial assets

i. Loans 5 -                          -                                       
i. Other financial assets 6 32                            44                                        

Other non-current assets 7 6                              0                                          
Total non-current assets 1,602                      1,774                                  

Current assets
Inventories 8 1,382                      1,436                                   
Financial assets

i.  Trade receivables 9 1,868                      1,752                                   
ii. Cash and cash equivalents 10(a) -                          76                                        
iii. Bank balances other than (ii) above 10(b) 10                            10                                        
iv. Loans 5 -                          -                                       
v. Other financial assets 6 12                            2                                          

Current tax assets (net) 11 7                              12                                        
Other current assets 12 196                         456                                      
Total current assets 3,475                      3,743                                  

Total assets 5,077                      5,517                                  

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 13 2,355                      2,355                                   
Other equity
Reserves and surplus 14 (759)                        (1,785)                                 
Total equity 1,596                      570                                      
Liabilities
Non current liabilities
Financial liabilities
      i Borrowings 15 361                         1,020                                   

  I (a). Lease liabilities 221                         313                                      
Employee benefit obligations 16 49                            51                                        

i. Other financial liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 32 15                            -                                       
Total non-current liabilities 645                         1,384                                  

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

i  Borrowings 17 930                         630                                      
I (a).  Lease liabilities 117                         130                                      
ii. Trade payables 18

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 

149                         198                                      

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

1,556                      2,486                                   

iii. Other financial liabilities 19 9                              60                                        
Employee benefit obligations 16 1                              1                                          
Other current liabilities 20 74                            59                                        
Total current liabilities 2,836                      3,563                                  

Total liabilities 3,481                      4,947                                  

Total equity and liabilities 5,077                      5,517                                  
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 The above balance sheet should be read in conjuncƟon with the accompanying notes.

For and on behalf of the Board As per our report of even date
For R K Khanna & Co.                  
Chartered Accountants
FRN 000033N

Vishal Swarupshyam Kabadi                          Navarathna Ranganath Rao Sumanth Vipin Bali
Director                                                             Director Partner
DIN: 07562946                                                DIN: 10258250 M.No. 083436

Place : 
Date : 

Chatan Kumar Goyal                                        Sathishkumar Bhuvaneswaran
Chief Financial Officer                                      Manager
PAN : BGCPG7278R                                         PAN: APEPS4795P
Place : Noida
Date : 09.05.2025

Note

(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)



Youngshin Motherson Auto Tech Limited
CIN : U35999DL2017PLC321298
Statement of profit and loss for the period ended March 31, 2025

Note For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Revenue
Revenue from Contract with Customers 21(a) 13,720                           10,580                           
Other Operating Revenue 21(b) 85                                   73                                   
Total revenue from operations 13,805                           10,653                           
Other income 22 84                                   41                                   
Total income 13,888                           10,695                           
Expenses
Cost of material and components consumed 23 10,613                           8,598                             
Changes in inventory of work in progess & finished goods 24 60                                   (213)                               
Employee benefits expense 25 846                                 673                                 
Finance costs 26 210                                 229                                 
Depreciation and amortization expense 27 302                                 302                                 
Other expenses 28 748                                 610                                 
Total expenses 12,779                           10,198                           

1,109                             497                                 
-                                  -                                  

Profit/(loss) before tax 1,109                             497                                 
Tax expenses
      -Current tax 29 81                                   -                                  
      -Deferred tax expense / (income) 32 12                                   -                                  
      -Short / (excess) of earlier years (1)                                    -                                  
Total tax expense 92                                   -                                  

Profit from continuing operations 1,016                             497                                 

Profit/(loss) for the year 1,016                             497                                 

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations[Gain/(Loss)] 13                                   4                                     
Deferred tax on remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations (3)                                    -                                  

Other comprehensive income for the  year, net of tax 10                                   4                                     

Total comprehensive income for the  year 1,026                             500                                 

Earnings/(Loss) per share (in absolute figures): 30
Nominal value per share: INR 10 each (Previous year : INR 10 each)
Basic 4.31                                2.11                                
Diluted 4.31                                2.11                                

2

The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For and on behalf of the Board As per our report of even date
For R K Khanna & Co.                  
Chartered Accountants
FRN 000033N

Vishal Swarupshyam Kabadi                          Navarathna Ranganath Rao Sumanth Vipin Bali
Director                                                             Director Partner
DIN: 07562946                                                DIN: 10258250 M.No. 083436

Place : 
Date : 

Chatan Kumar Goyal                                        Sathishkumar Bhuvaneswaran
Chief Financial Officer                                      Manager
PAN : BGCPG7278R                                         PAN: APEPS4795P
Place : Noida
Date : 09.05.2025

Summary of material accounting policies

Profit before exceptional items
Exceptional items (income)/ expense

(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)



Youngshin Motherson Auto Tech Limited
CIN : U35999DL2017PLC321298
Cash Flow Statement for the period ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

A. Cash flow from operating activities:

Net profit/(loss) before tax 1,109                                      497                                         
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization 302                                         302                                         
Fixed assets written off 1                                              -                                          
Interest income (8)                                             (3)                                             
Finance costs 210                                         229                                         
Unrealised (gain)/loss on foreign exchange transactions (8)                                             47                                            
Provision for gratuity and compensated absences 21                                            (29)                                          
Provision for doubtful Debts 17                                            -                                          

Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 1,644                                      1,043                                      

 Change in working capital: 
 Increase/(decrease) in trade payables (987)                                        681                                         
 Increase/(decrease) in current financial liabilities (60)                                          22                                            
 Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities 15                                            (9)                                             
 (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (133)                                        (554)                                        
 (Increase)/decrease in inventories 54                                            (333)                                        
 (Increase)/decrease in other non-current assets -                                          1                                              
 (Increase)/decrease in other current assets 260                                         29                                            
 (Increase)/decrease in financial assets 9                                              51                                            

 Cash generated from operations 803                                         932                                         
  Less: Income taxes paid (88)                                          (12)                                          
 Add: Interest received on income tax refund 1                                              1                                              
 Add: Income tax refund  11                                            11                                            
 Net Cash generated from operations 726                                         932                                         

B.  Cash flow from investing activities: 

 Payments for property, plant & equipment and intangible assets 
(including CWIP) 

(110)                                        (132)                                        

 Interest received 0                                              1                                              
 Net cash used in investing activities (109)                                        (131)                                        

C.  Cash flow from financing activities: 

 Issue of share capital 0                                              (0)                                             
 Interest paid (167)                                        (187)                                        
Proceeds/ (repayment) from short term borrowings from Bank (net) 271                                         (480)                                        
 Proceeds of term loan taken from Bank -                                          237                                         
 Repayment of term loan taken from Bank (230)                                        (144)                                        
 Proceeds of loans taken from Related Parties -                                          400                                         
 Repayment of loan taken from Related Parties (400)                                        (400)                                        
 Payment of lease liabilities (167)                                        (151)                                        
 Net cash from financing activities (693)                                        (725)                                        

 Net increase/(decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (76)                                          76                                            

  Add: Net Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 76                                            -                                          
 Cash and cash equivalents as at current year closing -                                          76                                            
 Summary of material accounting policies                                  2 
Notes:

(ii) The above cash flow statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For and on behalf of the Board As per our report of even date
For R K Khanna & Co.                  
Chartered Accountants
FRN 000033N

Vishal Swarupshyam Kabadi                          Navarathna Ranganath Rao Sumanth Vipin Bali
Director                                                             Director Partner
DIN: 07562946                                                DIN: 10258250 M.No. 083436

Place : 
Date : 

Chatan Kumar Goyal                                        Sathishkumar Bhuvaneswaran
Chief Financial Officer                                      Manager
PAN : BGCPG7278R                                         PAN: APEPS4795P
Place : Noida
Date : 09.05.2025

(i) The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in Indian Accounting Standard-7, “Statement of 
Cash Flows”.



Youngshin Motherson Auto Tech Limited
CIN : U35999DL2017PLC321298
Statement of changes in equity for the period ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)
A. Equity share capital

Amount
As at April 01, 2023 2,355                                             
Issue of equity share capital -                                                 
As at March 31, 2024 2,355                                             
Issue of equity share capital -                                                 
As at March 31, 2025 2,355                                             

B. Other Equity

Reserves and Surplus

Retained Earnings

Balance as at April 01, 2023 (2,286)                                            (2,286)                                           
Profit/(Loss) for the year 14 497                                                 497                                                
Other comprehensive income 14 4                                                     4                                                     
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 500                                                 500                                                
Balance as at March 31, 2024 (1,785)                                            (1,785)                                           
Profit/(Loss) for the year 14 1,016                                              1,016                                             
Other comprehensive income 14 10                                                   10                                                  
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 1,026                                              1,026                                             
Balance at March 31, 2025 (759)                                               (759)                                               

Summary of material accounting policies 2

The above statement of change in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For and on behalf of the Board As per our report of even date
For R K Khanna & Co.                  
Chartered Accountants
FRN 000033N

Vishal Swarupshyam Kabadi                          Navarathna Ranganath Rao Sumanth Vipin Bali
Director                                                             Director Partner
DIN: 07562946                                                DIN: 10258250 M.No. 083436

Place : 
Date : 

Chatan Kumar Goyal                                        Sathishkumar Bhuvaneswaran
Chief Financial Officer                                      Manager
PAN : BGCPG7278R                                         PAN: APEPS4795P
Place : Noida
Date : 09.05.2025

TotalParticulars Notes



Youngshin Motherson Auto Tech Limited
CIN : U35999DL2017PLC321298
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

1

a.

2.1 Material accounting policies.

• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
    The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has
identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair
value or revalued amount:
• Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy  regarding financial instruments) and

c. Current versus non-current classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

• Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading
• Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset and reported net when, in addition to
having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to
settle on a net basis in all of the following.

(i) The normal course of business
(ii) The event of default
(iii) The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the company and/or its counterparties

Summary of material accounting policies

Corporate information
The company was incorporated on 27th July, 2017 vide Certificate of Incorporation issued by Registrar of Companies, Central Registration Centre under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Presently, the Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Erstwhile Samvardhana Motherson International
Limited (SAMIL).

The entity’s primary objective is to engage in the business of trading, marketing, purchasing, selling, exporting, importing and manufacturing of clutches
and its parts for Automobiles or any other related applications as required.

(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

• Defined benefit pension plans – plan assets measured at fair value.
The financial statement are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lakh, except when otherwise indicated.

b. Presentation of financial statements
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) notified under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time).

Basis of preparation

Compliance with Ind- AS

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) notified under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time).



Interest Income: 
Interest income on fixed deposits is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate 
or as per bank certificate for the relevant period. 
Export Incentive benefits:
Income from duty drawback and export incentives is recognized on an accrual basis.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and
excluding taxes and duty. The company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting as principal or agent.

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably.
Sales of Goods:

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates.
Sales are recognised at single point of time when the control of goods are transferred to the buyer as per the terms of contract.

Sale of services:
Revenues from the sale of services are recorded at single point of time when the performance obligation as per contract has been satisfied.

(a)   The company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternate use to the Company and the Company has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.
(b)   The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced.
(c)    The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s performance as the Company performs.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in time at which the performance
obligation is satisfied.
When the company satisfies a performance obligation by delivering the promised goods or services or both it creates a contract based asset on the
amount of consideration earned by the performance. Where the amount of consideration received from a customer exceeds the amount of revenue
recognised this gives rise to a contract liability.

Step 1. Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and
obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.

Step 2. Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or
service or both to the customer.

Step 3. Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring promised goods or services or both to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than one performance obligation,
the company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the
company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5.  Recognise revenue when (or as) the company satisfies a performance obligation.

The company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing cost are presented in the Statement of profit and loss, within finance costs. All
other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the Statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other income or other expenses.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equity investments (other than investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates) classified as FVOCI are recognised in other comprehensive income.

e. Revenue recognition and Other income

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step model as set out in IND AS 115.

d. Foreign currencies 
(i) Functional and presentation currency
The Company’s functional currency is Indian Rupee lakh and the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee lakh.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end. 

Exchange rates are generally recognized in profit or loss. They are deferred in other comprehensive income if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges
and qualifying net investment hedges or are attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign operation. A monetary item for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future is considered as a part of the entity’s net investment in that foreign operation.



The company’s lease liabilities are included in Interest-bearing loans and borrowings.
As a Lessor
Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the
receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate the lessor for the expected inflationary cost increases. The
respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their respective nature.

The company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The
cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term
and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:
• Building: 5 years
 Vehicle : Over lease period
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation
is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
ii) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

g. Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The
arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a
right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.
As a Lessee

The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. the
company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets,

i) Right-of-use assets

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period in India.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the standalone financial statements. Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit nor loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize
those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are off set when there is a legally enforceable right to off-set current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are off set where the entity has a legally enforceable right to off-
set and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

f. Income tax



(a)    The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
(b)  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

· Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
· Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)
· Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

 Debt instruments at amortised cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
· Debt instruments at amortised cost

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand short term deposits with original maturities of three months or less
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

j. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation
multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s
CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a
long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods
covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for
subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used. Impairment losses including
impairment on inventories are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount,
nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually at the end of the financial year at the CGU level, as appropriate, and
when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

i. Cash and cash equivalents 

h. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount
of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.



(c) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS
115.
(d) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL.
(e) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass through arrangement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the
following financial assets and credit risk exposure:
(a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank
balance.
(b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI.

De-recognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed
from the Company’s balance sheet) when:
(a)    The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

(b)  The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost or FVOCI criteria, as at FVPL. However, such
election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The
Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company
may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on
an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in
the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or
loss within equity.
Equity instruments included within the FVPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the P&L.

(a)    The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
(b)   The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are
recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign
exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and 

Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income in statement of profit and loss using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVPL
FVPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortised cost or as

FVOCI, is classified as at FVPL.

Debt instrument at FVOCI
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVOCI if both of the following criteria are met:



De-recognition

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original. 

Liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss. Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated
Ind AS as FVPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognised in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently
transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings
This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings and other payables.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and
derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.e. as a liability. Debt instruments measured
at FVTOCI: For debt instruments measured at FVOCI, the expected credit losses do not reduce the carrying amount in the balance sheet, which remains
at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if the asset was measured at amortised cost is recognised in other
comprehensive income as the ‘accumulated impairment amount’.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on
purchase/ origination.

Financial liabilities 
Initial recognition and measurement

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant
increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss.
However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that
there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on
12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is
a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This
amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an
integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. 

Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.
The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.



Assets Useful life
Furniture and Fixture 10 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computers 3 years

Leasehold improvements
Over the period of lease or use full 
life, whichever is lower

Plant & Machinery 15  years
Electrical installations 10 Years
Factory equipment 15 Years
Mould and Dies 5 Years
Servers 6 Years

Property, Plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Capital work in progress
are stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes expenditure, net of any subsequent sale proceeds of items produced
over the cost of testing, that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items and the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its
cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 

The cost of self-generated assets comprises of raw material, components, direct labour, other direct cost and related production overheads.

Depreciation methods and useful lives
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives of the assets:

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial
assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as assets held for distribution in discontinued operations.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities, if any. At each reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the
values of assets and liabilities which are required to be re’-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies.

l. Property, Plant and equipment

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

k.   Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
· In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
· In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

 The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

Off- setting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are off set and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to off-
set the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.



Assets Useful life
Software 3 years

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises
from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
made.

Provisions for legal claims, product warranties and make good obligations are recognised when the Company has a present (legal or constructive)
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A 

Provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss
net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent Liabilities

Onerous contracts
If the Company has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a provision. However, before a
separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that
contract.

Raw materials: - cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is
determined on weighted average basis.

Traded goods: - cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is
determined on weighted average basis.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

o. Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and onerous contracts
Provisions

The useful live of intangible assets are as follows:

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.
The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of
carrying value of another asset.

n. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for as follows:

*Useful life of these assets are lower than the life prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 and those has been determined based on an
assessment performed by the management of expected usage of these assets. The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is de-recognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

m. Intangible  assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their
fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.



2.2 Material accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
periods.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, there are no significant judgements established by the management.

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to
participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period.

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue that have changed the number
of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

(ii) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:
'- the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and
'- The weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

Compensated Absences

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months from the end of the year end are treated as short
term employee benefits. The obligation towards the same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional
amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months from the end of the year end are treated as
other long term employee benefits. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of government
bonds. Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in statement of
profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Past-service costs are recognised immediately in income.

q. Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share

Contribution towards provident fund for employees is made to the regulatory authorities, where the Company has no further obligations. Such benefits
are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly
basis. The company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as expenditure in the statement of profit and loss, when an employee
renders the related service.

Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) covering eligible employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity
Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of
an amount based on the respective employees’ salary and the tenure of employment.

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at
the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit
method) at the end of each year. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows
using interest rates of government bonds. Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience.

Adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.
They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet. Past-service costs are recognised immediately in
income.

p. Employee benefits
Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance
sheet.

Provident Fund 



New and amended Standards

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market change or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in
the assumptions when they occur.

(i) Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves various assumptions that may differ
from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 16

(ii) Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable 
income. Given the nature of business differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, 
could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. 
The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing Interpretations of tax regulations by 
the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions 
prevailing in the respective domicile of the companies.

Estimates and assumptions

The Company previously recognised for deferred tax on leases on a net basis. As a result of these amendments, the Company has recognised a separate
deferred tax asset in relation to its lease liabilities and a deferred tax liability in relation to its right-of-use assets. Since, these balances qualify for offset
as per the requirements of paragraph 74 of Ind AS 12,there is no impact in the balance sheet. There was also no impact on the opening retained
earnings as at 1 April 2022.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated 31 March 2023 to amend the
following Ind AS which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023. The Company applied for the first-time these amendments.

(i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8
The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors. It has
also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.
The amendments had no impact on the Company’s standalone financial statements.
(ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1
The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose
their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the
concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.
The amendments have had an impact on the Company’s disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement, recognition or presentation of
any items in the Company’s financial statements.
(iii) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12
The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences such as leases.



Youngshin Motherson Auto Tech Limited
CIN : U35999DL2017PLC321298
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)
3 (a)  Property, plant and equipment

Particulars
Leasehold 

improvements
Plant and 
machinery

Electrical 
installations

Factory 
equipment's

Mould and 
dies

Furniture and  
fixtures 

Office 
equipment's

Computers Server Vehicles Total
Capital work-in-

progress

Period ended March 31, 2024
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount as at April 01, 2023 170                     1,438                 118                53                   87                     26                     23                   30                  2                  4                1,951                 70                      
Additions 10                       116                    (0)                   7                     21                     5                       1                     5                    -              2                168                    (43)                    
Addition on account of acquisition -                     -                     -                 -                 -                    -                   -                 -                 -              -             -                     -                    
Disposals -                     -                     -                 -                 -                    -                   -                 -                 -              -             -                     -                    
Other adjustment (Refer Note 2) -                     -                     -                 -                 -                    -                   -                 -                 -              -             -                     -                    
Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 180                     1,554                 118                60                   108                   31                     24                   35                  2                  5                2,118                 28                      

Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation as at April 01, 2023 155                     375                    50                  13                   39                     8                       13                   19                  1                  0                673                    -                    
Depreciation charge during the year 14                       99                      12                  1                     18                     3                       3                     7                    1                  1                159                    
Disposals -                     -                     -                 -                 -                    -                   -                 -                 -              -             -                     -                    
Impairment loss -                     -                     -                 -                 -                    -                   -                 -                 -              -             -                     -                    
Other adjustment (Refer Note 2) -                     -                     -                 -                 -                    -                   -                 -                 -              -             -                     -                    
Closing accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2024 169                     475                    62                  14                   57                     11                     16                   26                  2                  1                832                    -                    

-                     
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 11                       1,080                 56                  47                   51                     20                     8                     9                    0                  5                1,286                 28                      

Period ended March 31, 2025
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount as at April 01, 2024 180                     1,554                 118                60                   108                   31                     24                   35                  2                  5                2,118                 28                      
Additions 17                       77                      2                    5                     -                    3                       1                     17                  -              1                124                    (28)                    
Addition on account of acquisition -                     -                     -                 -                 -                    -                   -                 -                 -              -             -                     -                    
Disposals -                     -                     -                 -                 -                    -                   -                 -                 -              -             -                     -                    
Other adjustment -                     -                     -                 -                 -                    -                   -                 -                 -              -             -                     -                    
Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2025 197                     1,631                 120                66                   108                   35                     25                   52                  2                  6                2,243                 0.00                  

Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation as at April 01, 2024 169                     475                    62                  14                   57                     11                     16                   26                  2                  1                832                    -                    
Depreciation charge during the year 5                         106                    12                  1                     15                     4                       2                     7                    0                  1                154                    
Disposals -                     -                     -                 -                 -                    -                   -                 -                 -              -             -                     -                    
Impairment loss -                     -                     -                 -                 -                    -                   -                 -                 -              -             -                     -                    
Other adjustment -                     -                     -                 -                 -                    -                   -                 -                 -              -             -                     -                    
Closing accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2025 174                     581                    74                  15                   72                     15                     18                   33                  2                  2                986                    -                    

-                     
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2025 24                       1,050                 46                  51                   36                     20                     7                     19                  0                  5                1,257                 0                        

24                       1,050                 46                  51                   36                     20                     7                     19                  5                1,257                 
0                         0                         0                    (0)                   0                       (0)                     0                     (0)                   0                  (0)               0                         

Notes:
Note 1: Refer Note 42 for information on property, plant and equipments hypothecated as security by the company.



Youngshin Motherson Auto Tech Limited
CIN : U35999DL2017PLC321298
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

3(b) Capital work in progress
 As at 

March 31, 2025 
 As at 

March 31, 2024 

Capital work in progress -                         28                               

-                         28                              

Capital work in progress ageing schedule 

< 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years
Projects in progress* -                 -              -                  -                         -                             
Projects temporarily suspended -                 -              -                  -                         -                             
Total -                 -              -                  -                         -                             

Capital work in progress ageing schedule 

< 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years
Projects in progress* -                 28               -                  -                         28                               
Projects temporarily suspended -                 -              -                  -                         -                             
Total -                 28               -                  -                         28                              

*During FY 2024-25, CWIP worth INR 28 Lakh was capitalised.

As at 
March 31, 2024

Amount in CWIP for a period of 
Capital work in progress 

As at 
March 31, 2025

Capital work in progress 
Amount in CWIP for a period of 



Youngshin Motherson Auto Tech Limited
CIN : U35999DL2017PLC321298
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)
3(c)  Right-of-use assets

Particulars Buildings Vehicles Total

Year ended March 31, 2024
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount as at April 01, 2023 683                           18                             701                          
Additions during the year -                           -                           -                           
Disposals during the year -                           -                           -                           
Other adjustment# 8                              (1)                             7                              
Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 691                          17                            708                          

Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation as at April 01, 2023 156                           9                               164                          
Depreciation charge during the year 139                          2                              140                          
Disposals -                           -                           -                           
Impairment loss -                           -                           -                           
Other adjustment# (7)                             2                              (5)                             
Closing accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2024 287                          12                            299                          

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 404                          5                              409                          

Year ended March 31, 2025
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount as at April 01, 2024 691                           17                             708                          
Adjustment in opening balance on account of Ind AS 116 -                           -                           -                           
Additions during the year -                           27                            27                            
Disposals during the year -                           (6)                             (6)                             
Other adjustment# -                           -                           -                           
Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2025 691                          38                            730                          

Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation as at April 01, 2024 287                           12                             299                          
Depreciation charge during the year 138                          5                              143                          
Disposals -                           (6)                             (6)                             
Impairment loss -                           -                           -                           
Other adjustment# -                           -                           -                           
Closing accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2025 425                          11                            437                          

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2025 266                          27                            293                          



Youngshin Motherson Auto Tech Limited
CIN : U35999DL2017PLC321298
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

4. Intangible assets

Particulars Software Total

Year ended March 31, 2024
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount as at April 01, 2023 34                                 34                                      
Additions 7                                   7                                        
Addition on account of acquisition -                               -                                     
Disposals -                               -                                     
Other adjustment -                               -                                     
Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 41                                 41                                     

Accumulated amortisation 
Opening accumulated amortisation as at April 01, 2023 32                                 32                                      
Amortisation charge during the year 2                                   2                                        
Disposals -                               -                                     
Additions on account of acquisition -                               -                                     
Impairment loss -                               -                                     
Other adjustment -                               -                                     
Closing accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2024 33                                 33                                     
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 7                                   7                                        

Year ended March 31, 2025
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount as at April 01, 2024 41                                 41                                      
Additions 13                                 13                                      
Addition on account of acquisition -                               -                                     
Disposals -                               -                                     
Other adjustment -                               -                                     
Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2025 53                                 53                                     

Accumulated amortisation 
Opening accumulated amortisation as at April 01, 2024 33                                 33                                      
Amortisation charge during the year 5                                   5                                        
Disposals -                               -                                     
Additions on account of acquisition -                               -                                     
Impairment loss -                               -                                     
Other adjustment -                               -                                     
Closing accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2025 38                                 38                                     
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2025 15                                 15                                     

(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)
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5. Loans

Current Non-current Current Non-current
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Loans to employees -                             -                             -                             -                             

-                             -                             -                             -                             

6.  Other financial assets

Current Non-current Current Non-current
(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)
Security deposits:

- Related parties 12                               18                               -                             31                               
- Others 0                                 14                               2                                 13                               

Total 12                               32                               2                                 44                               

7. Other non-current assets 
 As at 

March 31, 2025 
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Prepaid expenses 6                                 0                                 

Total 6                                 0                                 

As at 
March 31, 2024

As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024
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8.  Inventories

 As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Material and components 1,015                         990                         
Work in progress 203                            250                         
Finished goods 165                            196                         
Total 1,382                        1,436                     
Inventories include Inventory in transit of:

Material and components 167                            448                         

9.  Trade receivables
 As at 

March 31, 2025 
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
(Unsecured, considered good)
  - Related Parties 615                            435                          
  - Others 1,253                         1,317                      
Unsecured, credit impaired 17                              -                          
Total 1,885                        1,752                     
Less: Allowances for credit impaired receivable (17)                             -                          
Net Total 1,868                        1,752                     

Trade receivables ageing schedule:
Undisputed

As at March 31, 
2025

As at March 31, 
2024

As at March 31, 
2025

As at March 31, 
2024

Current but not due                         1,687                       1,590                                 -                                -   
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 Months                               82                          162                                 -                                -   
6 months – 1 year                               99                               0                                 -                                -   
1-2 years                                -                                -                                (17)                              -   
2-3 years                                -                                -                                   -                                -   
More than 3 years                                -                                -                                   -                                -   

Total 1,868                       1,752                     (17)                             -                          

Note 1: For the financial years ended March 31, 2025 & March 31, 2024, there are no disputed trade receivables and no unbilled receivables.
Note 2: There are no unbilled receivables, hence the same is not disclosed in the ageing schedule.

10.(a)  Cash and cash equivalents 
 As at 

March 31, 2025 
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
Balances with banks:

 - In current accounts* -                             76                           
Total -                             76                           
*Represents debit balance in the cash credit account.

Change in liabilities arising from financing activities
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
 Cash flow Non cash items*

 As at 
March 31, 2025 

Non current borrowings (including current maturity of long term borrowing) 1,250                       (400)                       -                             620                         
Current borrowings 400                           271                        -                             671                         
Current and non current lease liabilities 443                           (167)                       61                              337                         
Total liabilities from financing activities 2,093                       (296)                       61                              1,628                     

As at 
March 31, 2023

 Cash flow Non cash items**
As at 

March 31, 2024

Non current borrowings (including current maturity of long term borrowing)                        1,156                          237 -                                                   1,250 
Current borrowings                            880                        (480) -                                                       400 
Current and non current lease liabilities                            540                        (151) 54                                                        443 
Total liabilities from financing activities 2,576                       (394)                       54                              2,093                     

Trade receivables – considered good Trade receivable – credit impaired

**Non cash items include new leases taken or termination of lease contracts in case of lease liabilities
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10.(b)  Other bank balances
 As at 

March 31, 2025 
 As at 

March 31, 2024 

Current account balance with Axis Bank Limited (Refer (i) below) 0                                 0                              
Deposits with orignal maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months# 10                              10                           
Total 10                              10                           

Note:

#Represents 100% margin for bank guarantee issued in favour of Customs Authorities in earlier years. The process of shifting the Bank
Guarantee to Kotak Mahindra Bank has been initiated.

11. Current tax assets(net)
 As at 

March 31, 2025 
 As at 

March 31, 2024 

Opening balance 12                              11                           
Adjustment for prior period tax (1)                               1                              
Less: Income tax refund received (11)                             (11)                          
Add: TDS deducted 14                              11                           
Add: Advance Income tax paid 75                              -                          
Less: Provision for Income Tax (81)                             -                          
Closing balance 7                                12                           

12. Other current assets 

 (Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)
 As at 

March 31, 2025 
 As at 

March 31, 2024 

Advance to suppliers

        - Related parties -                             2                              

        - Others -                             6                              
Prepaid expenses 3                                 1                              
Balances with government authorities* 193                            445                         
Total 196                            456                         

As authorized by the board vide resolution passed on 05-01-2024, the funds in account with Axis Bank Limited have been transferred to Kotak Mahindra 
Bank and adjusted against the overdraft facility obtained. Bank guarantee still stands with Axis Bank Limited and in process of being shifted to Kotak 
Mahindra Bank.

* Includes an amount of INR 95 Lakh debited by GST authorities from the electronic credit ledger for FY 2019-20 on account of an ex-parte Order by GST 
Authorities, UP - Refer Note 37 'Contingent Liabilities'.
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13.  Equity Share Capital

 As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Authorised:
30,000,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 3,000                                 3,000                                
(As at March 31, 2024: 30,000,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each)

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:
23,552,200 equity shares of INR 10/- each, fully paid-up 2,355                                 2,355                                
(As at March 31, 2024: 23,552,200 equity shares of INR 10/-, fully paid-up)

Total 2,355                                 2,355                                

a. Movement in equity share capital
Numbers Amount

As at March 31, 2024 236                                     2,355                                
Add: Shares issued during the year -                                      -                                    
As at March 31, 2025 236                                     2,355                                

b. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

Equity Shares:

FY 2024-25

S.N. No. of shares % of total shares
% change during the 

year

1 1,88,41,760 80%  -

2 47,10,440 20%  -
2,35,52,200 100%

The name of Motherson Sumi Systems Limited (MSSL) was changed to Samvardhana Motherson International Limited (SAMIL) w.e.f May 18, 2022.

FY 2023-24

S.N. No. of shares % of total shares
% change during the 

year

1 1,88,41,760 80% 60%

2 47,10,440 20% (60%)
2,35,52,200 100%

* Including 600 equity shares held by nominee shareholders

Samvardhana Motherson International Limited (Formerly known as 
Motherson Sumi Systems Limited)*

Total

 Name 

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial
interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity is entitled to one vote per share held. The 
Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend, if proposed by the Board of Directors, is subject to the approval of the shareholders in 
the Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all 
preferential amounts, in proportion to their share holding.

Youngshin Components Co. Ltd., South Korea

Vide Share Purchase Agreement dated April 19, 2023, Youngshin Components Co. Limited, South Korea sold 70,65,660 Equity Shares to Samvardhana 
Motherson International Limited (formerly Motherson Sumi Systems Limited). This increased the equity stake of Samvardhana Motherson International 
Limited (formerly Motherson Sumi Systems Limited) from 50% to 80% in the paid up share capital of Youngshin Motherson Auto Tech Limited.

Samvardhana Motherson International Limited (Formerly known as 
Motherson Sumi Systems Limited)*

 Name 

Youngshin Components Co. Ltd., South Korea
Total

c. Equity shares held by the promoters at the end of the year 
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14. Reserves and surplus
 As at 

March 31, 2025 
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
Retained earnings                                 (759)                              (1,785)

Total reserves and surplus                                 (759)                             (1,785)

 Retained earnings
 As at 

March 31, 2025 
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
Opening balance (1,785)                            (2,286)                            
Add/(Less): Profit/(loss) for the year 1,016                              497                                 
Add/(Less): Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation, net of tax [Gain/(Loss)] 10                                   4                                      

Closing balance (759)                               (1,785)                            

15.  Non-current borrowings
 As at 

March 31, 2025 
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
Long term borrowings from Bank* 361                                 620                                 
Loan from Related Parties (Refer Note 18) -                                  400                                 

361                                 1,020                             

*Sanctioned and utilised long term borrowing limits from Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited:

 As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024  As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

Term Loan-1
Purpose: Reimbursement of capex
Term: 5 year including one year moratorium period
Loan start date: 07-09-2021
Rate of interest: 6M MCLR + 25 bps, prevailing rate is 8.15%.

100                                 100                                 38                                                                       63 

Term Loan-2
Purpose: For paying off working capital creditors of Youngshin 
Components Company Limited, South Korea
Term: 5 year including one year moratorium period
Loan start date: 07-09-2021
Rate of interest: 6M MCLR + 25 bps, prevailing rate is 8.15%.

250                                 250                                 94                                                                     156 

Term Loan-3
Purpose: Purchase of plant & machinery/land & building/capacity 
expansion
Term: 5 year including one year moratorium period
Loan start date: 07-09-2021
Rate of interest: 6M MCLR + 25 bps, prevailing rate is 8.15%.

450                                 450                                 281                                 394                                 

Term Loan-4
Purpose: For capital expenditure from October 2022 to September 
2023 
Term: 5 year including one year moratorium period
Loan start date: 15-12-2022
Rate of interest: 6M MCLR + 25 bps, prevailing rate is 8.15%.

650                                 650                                                                   207                                   237 

Total 1,450                             1,450                             620                                 850                                 

 Both the parent companies agree to service facilites obtained from Banks, as below:

Youngshin Components Company Limited (YCCL, South Korea): To the extent of 20% of the outstanding amount of facilities obtained from Banks.

Outstanding (Including current maturities)

i. The security for all the Four Term Loans mentioned above:
First and exclusive hypothecation charge on all existing and future current assets and moveable fixed assets of the Borrower (Refer Note 42).

Security: 

Facility
Sanctioned

ii. Seperate Letters of Comfort, backed by board resolutions from Samvardhana Motherson International Limited (Formerly known as Motherson Sumi Systems Limited) 
and Youngshin Components Company Limited (YCCL, South Korea).

Samvardhana Motherson International Limited (Formerly known as Motherson Sumi Systems Limited): To the extent of 80% of the outstanding amount of facilities 
obtained from Banks.
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16. Employee benefit obigations

Current Non-current Current Non-current

 Gratuity 1                         26                1                                  32                                
 Compensated absences 1                         22                1                                  19                                
Total 1                         49                1                                  51                                

The long term defined employee benefits and contribution schemes of the Company are as under:

A. Defined Benefit Schemes

Gratuity 

(i) Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Obligations at year beginning 33                                55                                

Service Cost - Current 7                                  6                                  
Past service cost -                               -                               
Interest cost 2                                  4                                  
Less: Interest on plan assets (0)                                 
Amount recognised in profit or loss 9                                  10                                

Remeasurements
Actuarial (gain) / loss from change in financial assumption (13)                               (4)                                 
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income (13)                               (4)                                 
Payment from plan:

Benefit payments (1)                                 -                               
Acquisition adjustment 2                                  (29)                               

Actuarial Gain/ loss for the year on plan assets 0                                  
Obligations at year end 30                                33                                

(ii) Assets and Liabilities recognized in the Balance Sheet
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Present Value of the defined benefit obligations 30                                33                                
Fair value of the plan assets 3                                  -                               
Amount recognized as Liability 27                                33                                

(iii) Defined benefit obligations cost for the year:
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Service Cost - Current 7                                  6                                  
Past service cost -                               -                               
Interest Cost 2                                  4                                  
Actuarial (gain)/loss (13)                               (4)                                 
Net defined benefit obligations cost (4)                                 7                                  

(iv) Actuarial assumptions:
Particulars  As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024
Discount Rate per annum 7.04% 7.23%
Future salary increases 7.00% 7.00%
Expected return on plan asset - -

(v) Sensitivity Analysis

 March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024  March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024  March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024 

Discount Rate per annum 0.50% 0.50% Decrease by                         (2)                         (2) Increase by                                    2                                    2 

Future salary increases 0.50% 0.50% Increase by                          2                          2 Decrease by                                  (2)                                  (2)

vi) Risk exposure

Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 16.99 years (March 31, 2024: 16.88 years)
Expected benefit payments are as follows:

Less than a year Between
1-2 years

Between
2-5 years

Over 5 years Total

March 31, 2025
                         1                          1                    2                                 26                                  30 

March 31, 2024
                         1                          1                    3                                 28                                  33 

B. Defined Contribution Schemes

For the year ended For the period ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

29                                24                                
2                                  4                                  

Total                                 31                                  27 

Provident fund paid to the authorities
Employee state insurance paid to the authorities

Defined benefit obligation (gratuity)

Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss is as follows (Refer note 25):

The Company deposits an amount determined at a fixed percentage of basic pay every month to the State administered Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance (ESI) and Social
Insurance for the benefit of the employees. 

(b) Salary inflation risk : Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.

(a) Interest rate risk:  The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds, if bond yield fall, the defined benefit obligation will tend to increase.

(c) Demographic risk: This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, withdrawal, disability and retirement. The effect of these 
decrements on the defined benefit obligation  is not straight forward and depends upon the combination of salary  increase, discount rate and vesting criteria . It is important not to 
overstate withdrawals because in the financial analysis  the retirement benefit  of a short career employee  typically costs  less per year  as compared to long career employee.

Defined benefit obligation (gratuity)

vii) Defined benefit liability and employer contributions

The gratuity scheme is a final salary Defined Benefit Plan that provides for lump sum payment made on exit either by way of retirement, death, disability, voluntary withdrawal. The 
benefits are defined  on the basis of final salary and the period of service  and paid as lump sum at exit. The plan design means  the risk commonly  affecting the liabilities  and the 
financial results are expected to be:

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in assumption while holding all the other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and change in some of the
assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined
benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in
balance sheet.

Increase in Assumption Decrease in Assumption

 As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2025Particulars

Change in Assumption
Impact Impact

Every employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to fifteen days' salary last drawn for each completed year of service in line with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The same is 
payable at the time of separation from the Company or retirement, whichever is earlier. The benefits vest after five years of continuous service. The plan is unfunded.

The reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligations are as below:

Note: Estimate of future increases considered in actuarial valuation takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the 
employment market.

The sensitivity of defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is :
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17. Current borrowings
 As at 

March 31, 2025 
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
Secured Loans:
     Working capital loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited * 271                                       -                                             
     Current maturities of long term borrowings (Refer Note 15) 259                                       230                                            

Unsecured Loans:
     Loan from Related Parties** 400                                       400                                            

TOTAL 930                                       630                                            

*Sanctioned and utilised working capital facilities from Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited

Margin

Total sanctioned amount 
is INR 550 
interchangeable between 
the following facilities as 
shown

Utilized as at 31-Mar-2025

25% 550                                       271                                            
25% 550                                       271                                            
Nil 200                                       -                                             

Margin

Total sanctioned amount 
is INR 550 
interchangeable between 
the following facilities as 
shown

Utilized as at 31-Mar-2024

25% 550                                       -                                             
25% 550                                       -                                             
Nil 200                                       -                                             

Notes:
i.  Rate of interest for Cash credit & overdraft facility: Repo rate + 2.25% with quarterly reset, prevailing rate is 8.50%.
ii. Monthly statement of current assets filed with the bank are in agreement with the books of accounts.
iii. Security: First and exclusive hypothecation charge on all existing and future current assets and moveable fixed assets.

Loans from Related Parties** :
1 Lender Amount (INR lakh) Due date

SMR Automotive Systems India Limited (Refer 
below)

400 December 25, 2025

Notes :
(i). The interest is payable at the end of each month.

(iii). Loan of INR 400 Lakh form SMR Automotive Systems India Limited is payable on 25th December'2025.

2 Lender Amount (INR lakh) Due date

Motherson Techno Tools Ltd (Refer below) 400                                       April 20, 2024

Particulars

Fund based
Cash Credit
Working capital demand loan 
Overdraft facility backed by cashflow

Particulars

Fund based
Cash Credit
Working capital demand loan 
Overdraft facility backed by cashflow

Interest rate

8.5% per annum compounded yearly

Interest Rate

9.5% per annum compounded monthly

Note: Loan of INR 400 Lakh form Motherson Techno Tools Ltd., along with interest of INR 68 Lakh, has been repaid on 20th April'2024.

(ii). The lender and the borrower both have right to give five business days' notice in advance or any shorter notice as may be mutually decided by the lender 
and the borrower for the purpose of paying loan on demand or prepayment of loan either or fully respectively.
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18. Trade payables
 As at 

March 31, 2025 
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
Total outstanding due to micro and small enterprises (Refer Note 36):
           - Related parties 2                             15                         
           - Others 147                        183                      

Total outstanding dues to other than micro and small enterprises:
           - Related parties 287                        1,158                   
           - Others 1,270                     1,328                   

Total 1,705                     2,684                   

Trade payables ageing schedule:
Undisputed

Related Parties Others Related Parties Others Related Parties Others Related Parties Others
Current but not due                             1           147                             5           153                          232           942                     1,043        1,027 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of 
payment:

Less than 1 year                             1               0                          10             30                            55           327                        115           301 
1-2 years                            -                -                              -                -                               -                -                              -                -   
2-3 years                            -                -                              -                -                               -                -                              -                -   
More than 3 years                            -                -                              -                -                               -                -                              -                -   

Total 2                           147         15                         183         287                        1,270      1,158                   1,328      

Note: For the financial year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, there are no disputed trade payables.

19.  Other financial liabilities
 As at 

March 31, 2025 
 As at 

March 31, 2024 
Interest accrued & due on borrowings from Related Parties 9                             60                         
Total 9                             60                         

20.  Other current liabilities  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Statutory dues 27                          20                         
Employee benefits payable 30                          28                         
Advance recovery from employees 17                          11                         

74                          59                         

(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

As at 
March 31,2024

As at 
March 31,2025

Trade payables dues of micro and small enterprises Trade payables dues of creditors other than micro and 
small enterprises

As at 
March 31,2024

As at 
March 31,2025
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21(a).  Revenue from Contract with Customers As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sale of Goods
    - Within India 13,720                             10,580                                    
    - Outside India -                                   -                                          
Total 13,720                             10,580                                    

21(b).  Other Operating Revenue
Scrap sales 85                                    68                                           
Provision/Liabilities no longer required written back -                                   5                                             

85                                    73                                           

22.  Other income As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Interest income on deposits with banks 0                                       1                                              
Interest Income on Income tax refund 1                                       1                                              
Gain on exchange fluctuation (Realised) 63                                     34                                            
Gain on exchange fluctuation (Unrealised) 8                                       -                                           
Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost 7                                       1                                              
Miscellaneous income 5                                       5                                              
Total 84                                     41                                            

23. Cost of material and components consumed As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Opening stock of material and components 1,009                                889                                         
Add : Purchases of material and components 10,619                              8,717                                       
Less: Closing stock of material and components (1,015)                              (1,009)                                     

Cost of material consumed 10,613                             8,598                                      

24.  Changes in inventory of work in progess & finished goods As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(Increase)/ decrease in stocks
Stock at the opening of the year:
    Work-in-progress 231                                  130                                         
     Finished goods 196                                  84                                           
Total A 427                                  214                                         

Stock at the end of the year:
    Work-in-progress 203                                  231                                         
     Finished goods 165                                  196                                         
Total B 367                                  427                                         

(Increase)/ decrease in stocks (A-B) 60                                    (213)                                        

25.  Employee benefits expense As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Salary, wages & bonus 730                                  580                                         
Contribution to provident & other Fund 31                                    27                                           
Gratuity & Leave encashment 21                                    18                                           
Staff welfare & other expenses 64                                    48                                           
Total 846                                  673                                         

26.  Finance costs As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Interest on lease liabilities 34                                    43                                           
Interest on working capital loan 27                                    4                                             
Interest on term loans from Banks 74                                    107                                         
Interest to related parties 75                                    75                                           
Total 210                                  229                                         

27.  Depreciation and amortization Expense As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 155                                   159                                         
Amortisation on intangible assets 5                                       3                                             
Depreciation on right of use assets 143                                  140                                         
Total 302                                  302                                         



Youngshin Motherson Auto Tech Limited
CIN : U35999DL2017PLC321298
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

28.  Other expenses As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Electricity, water and fuel 75                                    70                                           
Repairs and maintenance:

-Others 125                                  43                                           
Consumption of stores and spare parts 123                                  102                                         
Job work expenses 106                                  89                                           
Lease rent considered short term 10                                    10                                           
Amortization cost of lease rent- factory 17                                    4                                             
Amortization cost of lease rent- vehicles 5                                       4                                             
Rates and  taxes 25                                    19                                           
Insurance 7                                       7                                             
Security Expenses 22                                    19                                           
Business Promotion 9                                       2                                             
Travelling 25                                    19                                           
Freight and  forwarding 49                                    35                                           
Postage and courier 2                                       2                                             
General Office Expenses 13                                    13                                           
Printing and stationery 6                                       3                                             
Fixed assets written off 1                                       -                                          
Assets less than INR 5000 -                                   0                                             
Donation 1                                       1                                             
Loss on exchange fluctuation (Unrealised) -                                   47                                           
Provision for doubtful debts 17                                    4                                             
Payments to auditors (Refer Note (a) below) 2                                       1                                             
Legal and professional expenses 98                                     105                                          
Bank charges 10                                     12                                           
Total 748                                  610                                         

Note (a): Payments to auditors: As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

As Auditor:
Audit fees 1                                       1                                             
Limited review fees 1                                       1                                             
Total                                        2                                               1 

29.  Income tax expense

Tax disclosure for the period ended March 31, 2025 under Ind AS-12
(a) Income tax expense recognised in profit and loss As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current tax
Current tax on profit for the year 81                                    -                                          
Adjustments for current tax of prior period (1)                                     -                                          
Total current tax expense 81                                    -                                          

Deferred tax (Refer note 32)
Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets (net) 12                                    -                                          
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) 12                                    -                                          
Income tax expense 92                                    -                                          

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense with the accounting profit/(loss) multiplied by the applicable tax rate
As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit/(loss) before income tax expense 1,109                               497                                         
Applicable tax rate 25.168% 26.000%
Tax calculated on applicable rate 279                                  129                                         

Adjustment for tax of prior period (1)                                     -                                          
Other tax disallowances for previous year (2)                                     -                                          
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible in calculating taxable income 0                                       (23)                                          
Unrecognised deferred tax on carried forward business losses & unabsorbed depreciation -                                   (121)                                        
Effect of unabsorbed depreciation adjusted with current year taxable income (184)                                 -                                          
Effect of change in tax rate (0)                                     -                                          
Unrecognised deferred tax on other items -                                   15                                           

Income tax expense 92                                    -                                          

30. Earnings/(loss) per share
As at As at

a) Basic March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Net profit/(loss) after tax available for equity shareholders                                 1,016                                           497 
Weighted average number of equity shares used to compute basic earnings per share                      2,35,52,200                             2,35,52,200 
Basic earnings/(loss) per share (absolute figures)                                   4.31                                          2.11 
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share*                                   4.31                                          2.11 

*The Company does not have any potential equity shares and thus there is no diluted EPS.
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31. Fair value measurements
i) Financial instruments by category

FVPL FVOCI Amortised Cost FVPL FVOCI Amortised Cost

Financial assets
Trade receivables* -                         -                         1,868                     -                         -                         1,752                     
Cash and cash equivalents* -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         76                          
Bank balances other than above -                         -                         10                          -                         -                         10                          
Loans -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         
Other financial assets* -                         -                         12                          -                         -                         2                             
Total financial assets -                         -                         1,890                     -                         -                         1,840                     

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings* -                         -                         1,047                     -                         -                         759                        
Trade payables* -                         -                         1,705                     -                         -                         2,684                     
Other financial liabilities* -                         -                         9                             -                         -                         60                          
Total financial liabilities -                         -                         2,761                     -                         -                         3,503                     

ii.) Fair value of non current financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Carrying 
amount

Fair value Carrying 
amount

Fair value

Financial Assets
Other financial assets* 32                          32                          44                          44                          

32                          32                          44                          44                          
Financial liabilities
Borrowings* 361                        361                        1,020                     1,020                     

361                        361                        1,020                     1,020                     

iii.) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

 As at March 31, 2025

The fair value of the financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

 As at March 31, 2024Particular

 As at March 31, 2025
Particular

*The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are 
considered to be the same as fair value due to their short term maturities.

 As at March 31, 2024

 *The fair value of non-current financial assets and liablities carried at amortised cost is substantially same as their carrying amount.
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32. Deferred tax assets / (liability)

Year ended as on March 31, 2025  As at April 01, 2024  Credit/ (charge) to Statement 
of Profit and Loss 

 Credit/ (charge) to other 
comprehensive income 

 As at 
March 31, 2025 

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets (38)                               (45)                                                   -                                       (45)                                    
Right of use assets (106)                             (74)                                                   -                                       (74)                                    
Prepaid Rent (0)                                  (2)                                                     -                                       (2)                                      
Total deferred tax liabilities (145)                             (120)                                                -                                       (120)                                 

Set-off of deferred tax assets pursuant to set-off provisions
Carried forward business losses 32                                 -                                                   -                                       -                                   
Security deposits (0)                                  4                                                      -                                       4                                       
Unabsorbed depreciation 331                              -                                                   -                                       -                                   
Employee benefit provisions 14                                 16                                                    (3)                                         13                                     
Provision of Bad and Doubtful loans -                               4                                                      -                                       4                                       
Impact of Lease liabilities as per INDAS 116 115                              85                                                    -                                       85                                     
Other tax disallowances -                               (0)                                                     -                                       (0)                                      
Total deferred tax assets 491                              109                                                  (3)                                         106                                  

Deferred tax assets / (liability) 347                              (12)                                                   (3)                                         (15)                                    
Less: Unrecognised deferred tax assets* (347)                             -                                                   -                                       -                                   
Deferred tax assets / (liability) -                               (12)                                                   (3)                                         (15)                                   

Year ended as on March 31, 2024  As at April 01, 2023  Credit/ (charge) to Statement 
of Profit and Loss 

 Credit/ (charge) to other 
comprehensive income 

 As at March 31, 2024 

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets (29)                               (9)                                                     -                                       (38)                                    
Right of use assets (140)                             33                                                    -                                       (106)                                 
Prepaid Rent -                               0                                                      -                                       (0)                                      
Total deferred tax liabilities (168)                             24                                                    -                                       (145)                                 

Set-off of deferred tax assets pursuant to set-off provisions
Carried forward losses 49                                 (18)                                                   -                                       32                                     
SD Present value -                               (0)                                                     -                                       (0)                                      
Unabsorbed depreciation 281                              51                                                    -                                       331                                   
Security deposits -                               -                                                   -                                       -                                   
Employee benefit provisions 22                                 (8)                                                     1                                           14                                     
Impact of lease liabilities as per IND AS 116 140                              (25)                                                   -                                       115                                   
Interest on delayed payments 9                                   (9)                                                     -                                       -                                   
Total deferred tax assets 501                              (9)                                                     1                                          491                                  

Deferred tax liability/(assets) (net) 333                              15                                                    1                                           347                                   
Less: Unrecognised deferred tax assets** (333)                             (15)                                                   (1)                                         (347)                                 
Recognised deferred tax assets -                               -                                                   -                                       -                                   

**The Company has not recognised net deferred tax assets, in absence of virtual certainty of sufficient taxable profits in the near future to realise the same.
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33.  Related Party Disclosures

I.     Related party disclosures, as required by Ind AS 24, are given below:

(i) Has control or joint control of the reporting entity
1. Youngshin Components Co. Ltd.
2. Samvardhana Motherson International Limited (Holding Company)

(ii) Key Managerial Personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the reporting entity
(I)  Board Of Directors of the reporting entity

1. Mr. Vishal Swarupshyam Kabadi
2. Mr. Seungbyung Park
3. Mr. Ajay Bahl (till 05 December, 2024)
4. Mr. Naveen Ganzu
5. Mr. Ravi Mathur
6. Mr. Rajesh Goel (till May 02, 2025)
7. Mr. Navarathna Ranganath Rao Sumanth (effective February 24, 2025)
8. Mr. Roopak Dharmvir Sharma (effective 05 May, 2025)

(II) Other Key Managerial Personnel of the reporting entity
1. Mr. Chatan Kumar Goyal (CFO)
2. Ms. Rinki Agarwal (CS) (resigned w.e.f. March 17, 2025)
3. Mr. Sathishkumar Bhuvaneswaran (Manager)

(iii) Subsidiaries of Entities having joint control over the company (With whom transactions have taken place)
1. Motherson Machinery And Automations Limited 
2. Motherson Technology Services Limited
3. Motherson Techno Tools Limited 
4. Samvardhana Motherson Global Management Services
5. Samvardhana Motherson Innovative Solutions Limited
6. Motherson Sumi Wiring India Limited
7. Motherson Air Travel Agencies Limited  
8. Motherson Consultancies Service Limited

(iv) Joint ventures of Entities having joint control over the company (With whom transactions have taken place)
1. Samvardhana Motherson Global Carriers Ltd
2. Anest Iwata Motherson Private Limited (through SMISL)
3. MSSL Japan Limited
4. Motherson Auto Solutions Limited 
5. Calsonic kansei motherson auto product Pvt. Ltd 
6. Motherson Automotive Elastomers Technology
7. Motherson Sumi Electric Wires 
8. SYSTEMATIC CONSCOM LIMITED
9. Motherson Auto Limited
10. Motherson Lease Solution Limited
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(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

(a) Key management personnel compensation

 March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024 
Long-term employee benefits -                                  -                                        
Short-term employee benefits 67                                    55                                          
Total compensation 67                                    55                                          

Note: Reimbursements are not part of compensation to KMP's

(b) Transactions with related parties

As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

1 Purchase of Goods 2,474                               3,990                                    651                                 499                                       
2 Interest on loan -                                   -                                        41                                    67                                          
3 Purchase of capital goods 5                                      20                                          51                                    21                                          
4 Reimbursement received -                                   (0)                                          (3)                                    (0)                                          
5 Reimbursement paid 0                                      -                                        3                                      79                                          
6 Legal & Professional expenses -                                   -                                        27                                    27                                          
7 Technical assistance service charges 51                                    70                                          -                                  -                                        
8 Commission paid 8                                      -                                        -                                  0                                            
9 Sales -                                   -                                        6,452                              3,981                                    

10 Repairs and maintenance -                                   -                                        61                                    10                                          
11 Tool development expenses -                                   -                                        -                                  -                                        
12 Freight and forwarding charges -                                   -                                        0                                      1                                            
13 Rent -                                   -                                        173                                 157                                       
14 Security deposit paid -                                   -                                        14                                    11                                          
15 Security Services -                                   -                                        5                                      5                                            
16 Travel expense paid -                                   -                                        22                                    15                                          
17 Electricity Charges -                                   -                                        57                                    32                                          
18 Office & Other Expenses 9                                      4                                            8                                      31                                          
19 Interest on loan -                                   -                                        41                                    -                                        
20 Other finance cost - early payment discount -                                   -                                        34                                    25                                          

Total 2,547                               4,083                                    7,638                              4,959                                    

(c) Outstanding balances arising from purchase of goods and services 

As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Payables/(Receivable)
1 Youngshin Components Co. Limited 144                                  1,039                                    -                                  -                                        
2 Anest Iwata Motherson Pvt Ltd -                                   -                                        2                                      0                                            
3 Calsonic Kansei Motherson Auto Products Private Limited -                                   -                                        (556)                                (352)                                      
4 Motherson Air Travel Agencies Ltd -                                   -                                        14                                    3                                            
5 Motherson Auto Limited -                                   -                                        4                                      9                                            
6 Motherson Auto Solution Ltd -                                   -                                        (0)                                    (2)                                          
7 Motherson Automotive Elastomers Technology -                                   -                                        3                                      2                                            
8 Motherson Consultancies Service Limited -                                   -                                        0                                      (0)                                          
9 Motherson Lease Solution Limited -                                   -                                        25                                    14                                          

10 Motherson Machinery and Automations Limited -                                   -                                        0                                      0                                            
11 Motherson Sumi Electric Wires -                                   -                                        3                                      3                                            
12 Motherson Sumi Systems Limited -                                   -                                        -                                  -                                        
13 Motherson Sumi Wiring India Limited -                                   -                                        3                                      3                                            
14 Motherson Techno Tools Limited -                                   -                                        13                                    72                                          
15 Motherson Technology Services Limited -                                   -                                        6                                      (0)                                          
16 MSSL Japan Limited -                                   -                                        14                                    2                                            
17 Samvardhana Motherson Auto Component Private Limited -                                   -                                        -                                  -                                        
18 Samvardhana Motherson Global Carriers Ltd -                                   -                                        (0)                                    0                                            
19 Samvardhana Motherson Global Management Services -                                   -                                        0                                      0                                            
20 Samvardhana Motherson Innovative Solutions Limited -                                   -                                        2                                      6                                            
21 Samvardhana Motherson International Limited -                                   -                                        -                                  -                                        
22 SYSTEMATIC CONSCOM LIMITED -                                   -                                        15                                    1                                            
23 SMR Automotive Systems India ltd. -                                   -                                        9                                      1                                            

Total 144                                  1,039                                    (441)                                (237)                                      

II. Details of transactions, in the ordinary course of business at commercial terms, and balances with related parties as mentioned in 33 (I) above .

S. No. Particulars

Entities with control or joint control over the 
entity

Subsidiaries and joint ventures of entities with 
control or joint control over the entity

S. No. Particulars

Entities with control or joint control over the 
entity

Subsidiaries and joint ventures of entities with 
control or joint control over the entity



Youngshin Motherson Auto Tech Limited
CIN : U35999DL2017PLC321298
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

(d) Loans & deposits to / from related parties

 As at 
March 31, 2025 

As at 
March 31, 2024

 As at 
March 31, 2025 

As at 
March 31, 2024

i. Security deposits given:
Beginning of the year -                                    -                                    11                                      -                                    
Add: Given -                                    -                                    14                                      11                                      
Less: Received back -                                    -                                    -                                    -                                    
End of the year -                                    -                                    25                                      11                                      

ii. (a) Loans taken:
Beginning of the year -                                    400                                   800                                   400                                   
Add: Loans taken -                                    -                                    -                                    400                                    
Less: Loans repaid -                                    (400)                                  (400)                                  
End of the year -                                    -                                    400                                   800                                   

ii. (b) Interest on loan taken:
Interest charged -                                    41                                      41                                      34                                      

Less: TDS @ 10% deducted -                                    (4)                                       (4)                                       (3)                                       

Interest paid -                                    37                                      37                                      31                                      

Note: Loan of INR 400 Lakh form Motherson Techno Tools Ltd., along with interest of INR 68 Lakh, has been repaid on 20th April'2024.

(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

S. No. Particulars

Entities with control or joint control over the 
entity

Subsidiaries and joint ventures of entities with 
control or joint control over the entity
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34. Segment Information:

Description of segments and principal activities

The following information discloses revenue from external customers based on geographical areas:

 As at 
March 31, 2025 

As at 
March 31, 2024

i) Revenue from external customers
India 13,720                              10,580                        
Outside India -                                    -                               

13,720                              10,580                        
ii) Segment Assets

 As at 
March 31, 2025 

As at 
March 31, 2024

India 1,570                                1,730                           
Outside India -                                    -                               

1,570                                1,730                           

 As at 
March 31, 2025 

As at 
March 31, 2024

Customer 1 6,443                                3,981                           
Customer 2 1,780                                2,427                           
Customer 3 3,699                                2,953                           

A. Information about geographical areas:

iii) Revenues from transactions with a single external customer amounting to 10 per cent or more of the Company’s revenues is as 

The company is in the business of manufacturing, selling, Importing and exporting clutches, including its parts, for  automobiles or any other 
related application as required.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting to the Chief Operating Officer "COO" of the Company. 
The COO is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments . The Company has monthly review 
and forecasting procedure in place and the COO reviews the operations of the Company as a whole, hence there are no reportable segments 
as per Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments"

Total of non-current assets other than financial instruments, investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate and deferred tax assets 
broken down by location of the assets, is shown below:
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(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)
35. Capital and other Commitments

Capital expenditure contracted at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as follows:

 As at 
March 31, 2025 

As at 
March 31, 2024

                                 -                                             9 

                                 -                                             9 

Property, plant and equipment

Total

Estimated value of contracts in capital account remaining to be executed [Net of advances  INR : Nil 
(March 31, 2024: INR Nil)]
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(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)
36. Due to micro and small enterprises

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

As at 
March 31, 2024

Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and 
remaining unpaid as at year end

                                     149                                198 

Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining 
unpaid as at year end

-                                      -                                

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond 
the appointed day during the year

-                                      -                                

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers 
registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

-                                      -                                

Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the 
MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

-                                      -                                

Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for 
payments already made

-                                      -                                

Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years -                                      -                                
Total 149                                     198                               

The Company has written to its suppliers to intimate the status as micro or small enterprise in terms of "Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act 2006"and to provide a copy of their registration certificate. The Company has shown below dues if any to 
suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (‘MSMED Act’) and a separate disclosure of the 
amount due to micro and small enterprises at the end of the year is given in Trade Payables. The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED 
Act is as follows: 
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(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 
March 31,2025

For the year ended
 March 31,2024

Bank Guarantees 10 10
321 -                             

GST Matters: Refer note (B) below 18 -                             
Total 349 10

38 Disclosure under Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

a.
Movement of provison

For the year ended 
March 31,2025

For the year ended
 March 31,2024

Opening balance                                  -                                    1 
Add: Additions                               (17)                                 -   
Less: Written back                                  -                                   (1)
Less: Utilised during the year                                  -                                   -   
Closing balance (17)                              -                             

b. Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

Segments
 For the year ended 

March 31,2025 
 For the year ended

 March 31,2024 

Revenue by geography
In India 13,720                        10,580                       
Outside India -                              -                             
Total revenue from contract with customers 13,720                       10,580                      
Revenue by major product lines
Sale of product 13,720                        10,580                       
Sale of services -                              -                             
Total revenue from contract with customers 13,720                       10,580                      

c. Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time                         13,720                        10,580 
Over time                                  -                                   -   
Total revenue from contract with customers 13,720                       10,580                      

d. Contract balances
The following table provides information about receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with customers.

Receivables                           1,868 1,752                         
Contract liabilities (advance from customer)                                  -   -                             

e. Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue recognised from
Amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year -                              -                             

Youngshin Motherson Auto Tech Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

37. Contingent liabilities:

The provision recognised on trade receivables arising from an entity's contracts with customers.

Particulars

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers from 1 April 2018  which resulted in 
changes in accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts recognised in the financial statements. In accordance with 
the transition provisions in Ind AS 115, the Company has adopted the new rules modified retrospectively . 

Particulars

GST Matters: Refer note (A) below

Note A: For FY 2019-20 for INR 321 Lakh { comprising tax -INR 160 Lakh, Interest - INR 131 Lakh and penalty - INR 30 Lakh } 
as per an ex-parte Order by GST Authorities, UP, primarily for excess input credit taken in the GST return filed by the 
Company as compared to the input credit reflected at the GST portal. The company has filed a  writ petition before the 
Hon'ble High Court of Allahabad and an interim stay has been granted. The said demand of tax of INR 160 lakh is covered 
by input tax credits of INR 95 Lakh available to the Company -Refer Note 12 ' Other Current Assets'.

Note B: For FY 2020-21 for INR 18 Lakh { comprising tax -INR 10 Lakh, Interest - INR 7 Lakh and penalty - INR 1 Lakh } 
demand raised by order dated 12-02-2025 against which an appeal is in the process of being filed before GST Appellate 
Authority Chennai. 
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(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

39. Financial risk management

Market risk:

A Price Risk

B Foreign currency risk:

(i) Particular of unhedged foreign exposure as at the reporting date (Net exposure to foreign currency risk)

Amount in 
INR (lakh)

Amount in 
INR (lakh)

United State Dollar (USD) -                                          -                                              -                           -                                                  
Korean Won (KRW) 2,483                                     144                                             16,761                    1,039                                              
Japanese Yen (JPY) 25                                           14                                               4                              2                                                      

C Interest rate risk:

Variable rate borrowings*
Fixed rate borrowings
Total borrowings

*Interest rate shall be floating  for the entire loan tenure and is linked to RBI repo rate with quarterly reset
An analysis by maturities is provided in note (E (i)) Maturities of financial liabilities below.
(ii) Sensitivity analysis

Interest rates-increase by 50 basis points*
Interest rates-decrease by 50 basis points*
* Holding all other variables constant

D Credit risk:

E Liquidity risk:

i. Maturities of financial liabilities

Year ended  March 31, 2025 Up to 1 year 1 to 5 years More than 5 years Total
Non-derivatives
Borrowings                                               930 361                    -                                                                         1,291 
Lease liabilities                                               117 221                    -                                                                             337 
Trade payables                                           1,705 -                     -                                                                         1,705 

                                                  9 -                     -                                                                                 9 
2,761                                         581                    -                           3,342                                              

Period ended  March 31, 2024 Up to 1 year 1 to 5 years More than 5 years Total
Non-derivatives
Borrowings                                               630 1,020                 -                                                                         1,650 
Lease liabilities                                               130 313                    -                                                                             443 
Trade payables                                           2,684 -                     -                                                                         2,684 

                                                60 -                     -                                                                               60 
3,503                                         1,333                -                           4,837                                              

40. Capital management
(a) Risk management

The Net Debt to EBITDA ratios were as follows:

 For the year ended
 March 31,2024 

Net Debt 1,628                       2,017                                              
EBITDA 1,621                       1,028                                              
Net Debt to EBITDA 1.0                            2.0                                                  

(b) Loan covenants

4                                                                                6                                                                                          

Impact on profit after tax

Amount in 
Foreign currency (lakh)

1,291                                                                        

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2024As at March 31, 2025
1,250                                                                                  

400                                                                                      
1,650                                                                                  

891                                                                            
400                                                                            

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign
exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency).
The company does not have any derivative instruments outstanding at the end of reporting periods and further unhedged foreign currency exposure is given as follows:

Fluctuation in commodity price in global market affects directly and indirectly the price of raw material and components used by the Company in its various products segment. Substantial pricing pressure from 
major OEMs to give price cuts and inability to pass on the increased cost to customers may also affect the profitability of the Company.

As at March 31, 2025
Payable / (Receivable)

As at March 31, 2024
Payable / (Receivable)

Currencies
Amount in 

Foreign currency (lakh)

Total non-derivative liabilities
Other financial liabilities

The liquidity risk encompasses any risk that the Company cannot fully meet its financial obligations. To manage the liquidity risk, cash flow forecasting is performed in the the Company and managed by Company
finance. The Company's finance monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom on its
undrawn committed borrowing facilities / overdraft facilities at all times so that the Company does not breach borrowing limits or covenants (where applicable) on any of its borrowing facilities.

The tables below analyse the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilities:

The credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations towards the Company and arises principally from the
Company's receivables from customers and deposits with banking institutions. The maximum amount of the credit exposure is equal to the carrying amounts of these receivables.

The adherence of all clients to payment due dates is monitored on an on-going basis, thereby practically eliminating the risk of default. The Company has deposited liquid funds at banking institutions in India.

For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctutate because of changes in market price/rate. Market risk comprises: Price risk, Foreign currency risk, Interest rate 
risk, sensitivity analysis, Credit risk and Liquidity risk.

Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities, the Company is required to comply with certain financial covenants and the Company has complied with those covenants throughout the reporting period. 

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and selling of automobile parts and is exposed to market risks, credit risk and liquidity risk as with any other manufacturing process. This makes it 
necessary to have an organised risk management system. The adherance to regulations, instructions, implementational rules through  planning, controlling and collectively monitoring along-with regular 
communication throughout the tightly woven management process form the base of the risk management system. 

(4)                                                                               (6)                                                                                         

 For the year ended 
March 31,2025 

The Company's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, 
and maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors NET Debt to EBITDA ratio i.e. Net debt (total borrowings including lease 
liabilities net of cash and cash equivalents) divided by EBITDA (Profit before tax plus depreciation and amortization expense plus finance costs).

Total non-derivative liabilities
Other financial liabilities
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41. Disclosure under Ind AS 116 Leases

*Leases previously classified as finance leases

*Leases previously accounted for as operating leases

The company also applied the available practical expedients wherein it:
• Used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics
• Relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous immediately before the date of initial application
• Applied the short-term leases exemptions to leases with lease term that ends within 12 months of the date of initial application
• Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application
• Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contained options to extend or terminate the lease

Impact Assessment of Ind AS 116 
 (i) Impact on the statement of financial position (increase/(decrease)) as at 31 March, 2025

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2025
As at 

March 31, 2024
Assets
Right-of-use assets 293                                             409                                             
Deferred tax liabilities (74)                                              (106)                                            
Total 219                                            303                                             

Liabilities   
Lease liabilities                                     337                                             443                                             
Deferred tax assets 85                                               115                                             
Total 337                                            443                                             

Net Impact on equity (118)                                           (141)                                            

(ii) Impact on the statement of profit or loss (increase/(decrease)) for the year ended March 31, 2025:

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31,2025
For the year ended 

March 31,2024
Lease rent derecognize 167                                             151                                             
Depreciation of Right of Use asset 143                                             140                                             
Interest expense on Lease liability (included in Finance Cost) 34                                               43                                                
Net Impact on Statement of profit and loss (increase/(decrease)) 344                                            334                                             

Other disclosures:
1. Commitment for short term lease -                                             -                                              

2. Short term and/or low value lease payment 10                                               10                                               

(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Upon adoption of Ind AS 116, the company applied a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, 
Leases for the accounting policy beginning April 01, 2019. The standard provides specific transition requirements and practical expedients, which have been applied by the 
company.

  The company did not have any lease contract which are classified as finance lease prior to April 01, 2019. The company did not change the initial carrying amounts of 
recognised assets and liabilities at the date of initial application for leases previously classified as finance leases (i.e., the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities equal the lease 
assets and liabilities recognised under Ind AS 17). The requirements of Ind AS 116 were applied to these leases from April 01, 2019.

The company recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for those leases previously classified as operating leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value 
assets. The right-of-use assets for most leases were recognised based on the carrying amount as if the standard had always been applied, apart from the use of incremental 
borrowing rate at the date of initial application. In some leases, the right-of-use assets were recognised based on the amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted for any 
related prepaid and accrued lease payments previously recognised. Lease liabilities were recognised based on the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted 
using the incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified on March 30, 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after April 01, 2019. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases 
under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees – leases of 
‘low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will 
recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use 
asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. The Company has 
adopted Ind AS 116 effective annual reporting period beginning April 01, 2019 by following modified retrospective approach and its impact on financial statement presented 
below:
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42.  Assets hypothecated as security

For the year ended 
March 31,2025

For the year ended
 March 31,2024

Current:
First charge
Inventory 1,382                                    1,436                                    
Trade receivables 1,868                                    1,752                                    
Other Bank balances 10                                          10                                          
Other financial assets 12                                          2                                            
Current tax assets (net) -                                        -                                        
Other current assets 196                                       456                                       
Total current assets hypothecated as security 3,467                                    3,655                                    

Non-current:
First charge
Property, plant and equipment 1,257                                    1,286                                    
Capital Work in Progress -                                        28                                          
Intangible assets -                                        -                                        
Other financial assets 32                                          44                                          
Other non-current assets 6                                            0                                            
Total non-current assets hypothecated as security 1,294                                    1,358                                    
Total assets hypothecated as security 4,761                                    5,014                                    

(All amounts in INR lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Credit facilities obtained from Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited are against first and exclusive hypothecation 
charge on all existing and future current assets and moveable fixed assets of the company.
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43. Ratio analysis and its elements

March 31,2025 March 31,2024

1 Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.2                       1.1                       16.7%  -

2 Debt-Equity Ratio Debt = Current Liabilities + Non-Current Liabilities Equity 0.8                       2.9                       (72.0%)

Variance due to:
1. ICD from MTTL INR 400 Lacs & Kotak Mahindra loan paid INR 230 Lacs
2. Increase in equity balance due to profits generated during the year due to higher 
sales volume to existing customers.

3 Debt Service coverage ratio
[Net Profit after taxes + Non-Cash operating expenses 
(including depreciation and amortization)+interest expenses 
+other adjustments like loss on sale of fixed assets]

Current maturities of long term borrowing, 
interest expense (except Ind AS 116 
finance cost) and lease payment

3.7                       2.5                       50.2%

Variance due to:
1. Higher profits during the year due to higher sales volumes to existing customers 
leading to better interest coverage.
2. Decrease in borrowing due to Higher Cash flow.

4 Return on Equity ratio Profit after Tax Average share holders equity fund 94% 155% (39.6%)
Variance due to: Increase in equity balance due to profits generated during the year 
due to higher sales volume to existing customers.

5 Inventory Turnover Cost of Goods Sold Average Inventory 7.6                       6.6                       14.7%  -

6 Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio Revenue from contract with customers Average trade receivables 7.6                       7.2                       5.7%  -

7 Trade Payables Turnover Ratio Purchase of Raw material & Stock-in- Trade Average trade payables 4.8                       3.8                       28.7%
Variance due to: Due to Higher profits, we generated Cash. We paid Trade payables 
as per their payment terms.

8 Net Capital Turnover Ratio Net Sales Average Working Capital 33.5                    (137.7)                 (124.3%) Variance due to: Higher sales volume to existing customers during the year.

9 Net Profit Ratio Net Profit Net Sales 7.4% 4.7% 57.7%
Variance due to: Higher profits during the year due to higher sales volume compared 
to lower sales volume last year and corresponding loss.

10 Return on Capital Employed Earnings before interest and taxes Average Capital Employed 51.7% 33.6% 53.9%
Variance due to:
1. Higher sales volumes to existing customers during the year.
2. Higher average capital employed.

11 Return on Investment Interest Income Investment NA NA NA -

S.No. Ratio % change Reason in case variance is more than 25%Numerator Denominator
For the year ended
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44. Other Statutory Information 
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Place : Noida
Date : 09.05.2025

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets) and intangible 
assets during the year.

45. Amount appearing as zero "0" in the financial statements are below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company.

47. Corresponding figures of previous year are regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary to confirm to the current year 
classification. 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) 
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, 
search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institutions or any other lender.

The Company does not own any immovable properties.

The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit 
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, there 
are no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per statutory 
requirements for record retention.

The Company does not have any holding in downstream companies, hence compliance with number of layers is not 
applicable.

46. Audit Trail

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

There are no proceedings that have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any Benami property 
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules thereunder.

There are no transactions with companies that are struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or 
Section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956.
The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory 
period.
The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during year.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
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